9:04: 30 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 19, 2010
9:04 a. m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 9:04 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

M ke Hawker,
Bill Stoltze,
Bill Thomas Jr.,
Al | an Aust er man
M ke Doogan
Anna Faircl ough
Neal Foster

Les Gara

Reggi e Joul e

M ke Kelly

Co- Chair
Co-Chair
Vice-Chair

Whodi e Sal non

Representati ve M ke Kel |'y; Der ek
Representative Kelly

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Tamara  Cook, Di rector, Legi sl ative Legal

Legi slative Affairs Agency

SUVWARY

HIR 8
CS HIR 8(FIN) was REPORTED out

W th a no
previ ously published fiscal

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1

MIller,

and

FN2 ( ADM

recormendati ons
not e:

Staff,

Servi ces,

CONST. AM  APPROP. LI M T/ M NERAL REVENUE

Commi ttee
with

03/19/10 9:04 A M



9:04: 34 AM

#hjr8
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 8

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State
of Alaska |limting appropriations from certain mnera
revenue, relating to the bal anced budget account, and
relating to an appropriation limt.

9:04: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY presented an overview of the bill
whi ch would replace a nmechanism in the Al aska Constitution
to attenpt to control state spending. He stressed the need
for fiscal responsibility and stability in the state. This
bill would be a shock absorber using a five year average to
form a bal anced budget tank to put noney into that could be
accessed in any given year to bring in enough noney to neet
the five year average on spending. HE stressed that this is
an averagi ng nmechani sm

Co-Chair Stoltze notified his intent to have a notion to
this bill nmove out.

9:07:41 AM

Representati ve Doogan asked about the nmany revenue sources
in Section 1 and wondered how much of the general revenue
woul d this account deal wth.

Representative Kelly responded in the 80 plus percent
range. It attenpts to capture all mneral revenues.

Representative Doogan inquired on page 2, line 12-13 that
it reads Section 7 does not apply and he wondered why.

Co-Chair Stoltze replied that it is the dedicated funds
provi sion. Representative Kelly agreed that was correct.
Representative Doogan noted that this presunptively nakes
this not a dedicated fund. Representative Kelly agreed.
Representati ve Doogan renmarked that on page 2, l|line 16-17
it reads "that excess amount shall be transferred to the
budget reserve fund..." and wondered if that was what was
being created with this bill. Representative Kelly remarked
that the balanced budget account is the reserve being
referred to so the answer is yes.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/19/10 9:04 A M



Co-Chair Stoltze interjected if that the Section 17 budget
reserve fund is referred to in Article 9 of the Al aska
Constitution. Representative Kel ly replied that was
correct.

Representati ve Doogan wondered in Section 2 of the bill
what this application of m ner al revenue anendnent
acconpl i shes. He understood there was sonething in |aw that
i's being revised here.

9:11:45 AM

DEREK M LLER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KELLY, reported that
the anmendnment replaced the current appropriation limt in
the Alaska Constitution under Article |IX Section 16. It
applies to appropriations in 2012 and thereafter.

Representative Doogan inquired that if this |anguage is
passed, then this bill will, in 2012, supersede the current
| anguage in Section 16. M. Mller replied yes. He
explained that on page 1, line 5-6, it states that "Article
I X, sec. 16, Constitution of the State of Al aska, 1is
repealed and readopted to read:" Representative Doogan
assuned that all of sec. 16 is out and this new information
would be put in. The funding nechanism switches from the
current sec. 16 to the language in the bill. M. Mller
replied that was correct.

9:13:22 AM

Representative Gara renarked that the Constitutional Budget
Reserve (CBR) remains the same; to access it would need the
sanme nunber of votes now needed. If the five year average
of nmoney put into mneral lease fund is not enough, then
t aki ng noney fromthe CBR would be the sanme as is presently
done. Representative Kelly replied that was correct.

Representative Gara surm sed the fund | ooked at to indicate
whet her there is enough noney so the CBR doesn't have to be
di pped into, is not all the noney that cones in that year
only the mneral |ease noney at roughly 80 percent.
Representative Kelly replied that is correct.

Representative Gara inquired if the five year average
happens to say there is a 20 percent shortfall, but that 20
percent short fall is the noney from tuition paynents and
busi ness |icense receipts not yet received, he wondered why

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/19/10 9:04 A M



they would not be counted. Representative Kelly noted that
this had been considered, but the purpose was to try to
capture the volatility anpunt. Qther areas which are open
to appropriation were |left alone because they are not
vol atil e.

Representative Gara understood that it seens like that is
the noney paying for the service. He questioned why that
noney would not be counted. Representative Kelly offered
that this captures the volatile piece and keeps out of the
equation all the new initiatives that m ght cone to Al aska.
This includes all the econom c devel opnment dreans outside
t he m ner al revenue equati on woul d be avai |l abl e.
Representative Gara asked what woul d be the anount of noney
not calculated into the equation.

9:17:15 AM

M. MIller responded it reflects $400 nmillion to $700
million in the last five to ten years.

Representative Gara inquired in what years the CBR vote
woul d have been necessary in order to neet the budget over
the past decade. M. MIller replied that the graph on page
10 of the PowerPoint presentation shows the State Genera
Fund Spendi ng FY80-FY10 (HIJR 8 Bal anced Budget Resol ution
House Finance Commttee, March 18, 2010 copy on file). The
green line reflects the total General Fund (GF) Revenue
received; the blue line is the actual GF spending spent
that year; the black line is the estimated anount if HIR 8
had been in effect. He noted the difference between the
black line and blue line would be in excess of what would
be spent in any given year from FY 2000 to FY 2009.

Representative Gara noted that starting in FY 2002 through
FY 2008 it would have been necessary to go into the CBR or
cut the budget by $500 nmillion. Representative Kelly
responded that there would have been roughly $4 billion
woul d be carved out of the process by being disciplined to
use the averaging. Representative Gara observed that gives
a lot of power to those not in the majority.

Representative Kelly indicated that the intention is to
give people the people of Alaska a margin in fiscal
planning to avoid the crash ahead. Representative Gara
agreed that seens to be the intent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/19/10 9:04 A M



9: 20: 58 AM

Representative Kelly answered that this is a bipartisan
appr oach.

Representative Fairclough asked Representative Kelly to
speak to the current Al aska Constitution, Section 16, and
what this provided to the citizens of Alaska and the
difference in this new Section 16. She added not in
relationship to dollars. She stated that Section 16 sets an
appropriation limt, but it also does other things, such as
revenue bonds and cumul ative draws. She wanted to know the
speci fic conmponents of what is being repeal ed.

Representative Kelly responded that Tamara Cook could
respond better to that question.

Co-Chair Stoltze commented that he did not think they were
spendi ng one third of appropriations on capital budgets. He
bel i eved Representative Kelly was trying to make this nore
clear and forcible. Representative Kelly agreed.

9:23:31 AM AT EASE
9:41: 07 AM RECONVENED
9:41:16 AM

TAMARA  COCK, DI RECTCR, LEQ SLATI VE  LEGAL SERVI CES
LEG SLATI VE AFFAI RS ACENCY (via teleconference) referred to
the contents of the current Section 16. That appropriation
limt was enacted in 1982, originally to be applied in
1984. It has never been applied. The difference in Section
16 under this bill is that it takes a different approach.
Instead of sinply identifying sources of mneral revenue as
HIR 8 does, the original section lists a nunber of critical
exceptions based on the purpose of the appropriation that
are out fromunder the limt.

Representative Fairclough asked the provisions inside of
the current Section 16 so there can be a conparative
anal ysis between the two bills.

Ms. Cook responded that in the existing Section 16 the
appropriation limt takes the track of first exenpting out
from the formula. HIJIR 8 does not have the exenption. She
explained that the exenptions in the existing Section 16
are appropriations for Al aska Permanent Fund Dividends,

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/19/10 9:04 A M



Appropriations of Revenue Bonds proceeds, appropriations to
pay the principle and interest on Governnent bligation
(GO bonds and appropriations of noney received from a non
state source in trust for a specific purpose. The current
Section 16 sets a hard nunber. Appropriations from the
treasury made for a fiscal year shall not exceed $2.5
billion. That nunber is increased by the cunul ative change
derived from the federal indexes as prescribed by law in
popul ation and inflation since July 1, 1981. She understood
the inflation proofing part of Section 16, that has the

$2.5 billion figure, has grown to such an extent that the
state has never reached it. Section 16 also contains a
provision that says within the appropriation limt, once

calculated, that one third of the appropriation has to be
reserved for capital projects and |oan appropriations.
There is no simlar provision in HIR 8. She continued that
a mechani sm whereby the | egislature can exceed the existing
appropriation limt for bills that make appropriations to
the Permanent Fund and for bills that make appropriations
for capital projects, if the bill 1is approved by the
governor or passed by affirmative vote of three-fourths of
the nenbership of the legislature over a veto. The existing
Section 16 is considerably different from the HIR 8 under
di scussi on.

9:46: 58 AM

Representative Fairclough asked for the exenption in the
current formula that specifies that Per manent Fund
di vidends would take precedence over other expenditures.
She also inquired how that was relevant to the new bill and
the proposed ballot neasure would secure the people's
Per manent Fund Di vi dend.

Ms. Cook replied that the HIR 8 does not speak to the
Permanent Fund Dividend at all. The existing Section 16
sinmply exenpted out fromthe appropriation limt the anount
of noney the state spends on the Permanent Fund D vidend
That appropriation was never part of the original
cal cul ati on.

Representative Gara wondered how this would change the
Per manent Fund Dividend. Representative Kelly replied that
the statement before, relative to the Permanent Fund and
its entire operation, would not change it. There would al so
be no different access to the permanent fund than currently
exi st s.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/19/10 9:04 A M



9:49: 15 AM

Representative Doogan noted there are circunstances when
the permanent fund ends up with nore noney after inflation
proofing and paying dividends and wondered if that anount
of noney woul d be affected by this proposal.

Representative Kelly stressed that it would not be because
this nechanism is different mechanism from the existing
one. This is a five year average only of the mneral
i ncone.

Representative Doogan contended then that neither the
anount put in the permanent fund nor the investnent incone
woul d be affected. Representative Kelly responded that was
correct.

9: 50: 40 AM

Representative Austerman asked if the five year averaging
is inplemented, would it step back four years to pick up
the average. Representative Kelly responded that it |ooks
back four fiscal years and one forward.

9:51:45 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if there was any public testinony.
Co-Chair Stoltze closed public testinony for the conmttee.

Representative Fairclough inquired that when | ooking back
at all appropriations had there been consideration in this
concept bill to look at the flexibility of a year when
there is no revenue. A common problem is that there is
al ways the anticipation that noney wll be mde and not
| ost. She wondered if there has been a discussion wth
legal in that regard. She asserted that if taking all
appropriation, instead of just the operating budget, that
may restrict the legislature in a way not wanted.

Representative Kelly replied that since the only focus is
the five year average of the mineral revenue, then it is a
ranp into and out of higher and lower oil prices. It does
not touch the revenue outside of the equation.

Representative Fairclough inquired if the I|anguage should
reflect all the operating budgets appropriations versus the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/19/10 9:04 A M



capi tal budget which is volatile up and down. The state has
the nost control on the operating budget. She remarked that
in her community and throughout Alaska that Alaska's
capital budget when invested is an economc engine in
different communities. If oil revenues at 80 percent wll
be invested in capital projects it mght hanper sone
projects that in a given year Al aska needs nore investnent
in a capital project. She wondered how that will affect an
oper ati ng budget given those restraints.

9:55:27 AM

Representative Kelly responded that this bill only |ooks at
the revenue side and does not affect the legislature's
ability to factor between operating budgets and capital

budgets in any given year. It also does not control the
anount that the legislature can take from the mnera
revenue except to average it. This bill would place $4
billion in addition to current savings into the bank. Since
oil price spikes do not necessarily coincide with the
capital needs, he believed that by putting noney into this
tank it could fill up to two times the annual
appropriation, then it could be accessed for tinmes when
revenue fall below the line wll be better there is

discipline to put sonething in it. Wen the noney is in
excess of the bal ance budget account overflows it would go
directly into the CBR There could also be access to this
noney with a three quarter vote. It would not prejudice
between the capital and operating budgets only danpen down
t he ups and downs with a shock absorber.

Representative Fairclough remarked it is an appropriation
l[imt so it will cap spending which she understood that was
intent. She noted the downturn in the United States econony
and remarked that the University of Al aska budget was one
of few wuniversities in the nation that received an
increase. She asked if the appropriation Iimt is on those
m neral revenues and if there is noney el sewhere then this
will Iimt the investnments since that are where nost of the
noney cones from This m ght restrict spending in
comunities in the future.

9:58:49 AM

Representative Austernman asked about the non renewable
resources extraction in Al aska as what the budget wll be
based on. He believed that Al aska has already seen the peak

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/19/10 9:04 A M



of funding source through that and a non renewabl e revenue
sour ce; he believed would continue to go down. He
guestioned how the state would adjust for this.

Representative Kelly agreed. He offered that this nmechanism
cannot create any wealth for the state only discipline the
spendi ng. The inevitable crash between the growh in state
budget and a decline in the non renewable resource
approaches. He maintained that this bill along wth other
efforts will go toward stability and predictability in and
out of price changes. He stressed the state's goal to find
other ways to create wealth to pay for the state's services
are out of this equation. Representative Austernman agreed
on the issue that Representative Kelly is only indicating
t he maxi mum anmount from these m neral sources of revenue so
that then would drive the state to get other sources of
revenue to pay the bills. Representative Kelly agreed with
hi m

10: 02:18 AM

Representative Doogan reflected that this nmechanism wll
operate a lot |like the averaging in the Permanent Fund. The

anount that goes in will go up or down depending on revenue
and spending. Representative Kelly agreed that is directly
on point. This bill would be an averagi ng net hod.

Representative Austernman clarified that wunder (d) the
anounts placed in the Al aska permanent fund under Section
15 and the amounts placed in the budget reserved under
Section 17(a) is excluded. Representative Kelly stressed
that was correct.

10: 05: 08 AM

Representati ve Joul e not ed Section 15 of Al aska
Constitution as it relates to the Alaska Permanent Fund
states the anobunt of mneral |ease, rentals and royalties
that goes into the Al aska Permanent Fund. At one tine,
through statute, it was fifty percent. It seens that it
m ght be easier to enact a statute. It wuld |eave the
| egislature the option of looking at it as an option on how
it could be done while considering sone of the long term
options of how to nove forward in trying to determ ne sone
of the questions. A few years ago the statue was repeal ed
and it went back down to twenty five percent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/19/10 9:04 A M



Representative Kelly divulged that there had been
di scussion on using the statute because there is a |ower
effort to get there. He noted that it was hard to figure
how to do within statute and he believed that the people of
Al aska shoul d have a say on this.

Representative Joule remarked that if |ooking at sone way
to base the budget, on not just the value of a barrel of
oil, but on the wealth of the state. If all funds were put
into the Permanent Fund and then did a percent of market
value and then lived off of that, there mght be sone
stunbling blocks ore rework. A statute gives perm ssion to
do sonething in the interimwith a longer view in mnd. The
| egislature does not deal wth budgets, but wth request
for increments.

Representative Kelly comented that HIR 8 would operate

only on the mneral wealth; it would put up no barrier
different from today in regard to the Percent of Market
?Val ue (POW) or incone tax. This bill is a shock absorber

that does not create wealth or take it away.

Representative Joule voiced his concern that issues need to
be picked very carefully when going to the public to change
t he Al aska Constitution.

10: 11: 33 AM

Representative Kelly MWED to ADOPT Anendnent 1, 26-
LS0388\ A. 1, Cook, 3/18/10 (copy on file):

Page 1, line 12, through page 2, |ine:

Delete all materi al

I nsert "anmounts received by the state from these
sources during the five fiscal years that immediately
precede the current fiscal year divided by five."

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for discussion

Representative Kelly explained Anmendnent 1. | t was
determined to go to fiscal years over cal endar years as the
easier way to go.

Representative Austernan noted that this renoves the
| ooking forward year and is now |ooking at the past five
years. Representative Kelly responded that was not exactly
correct. M. Mller explained that the graph on page 15

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/19/10 9:04 A M



describes what it does. For exanple in the FY10 budget,
this anmendnent would still project the next four or five
nmonths of revenue to the legislature. It would still be
projected out, but not a full year as it would be with a
cal endar year.

Representative Austerman rermarked that in the anendnent on
line 4 it says it immediately "precedes" the current. He
believed this related to FY 2009. M. MIller contended that
the current fiscal year is FY 2011. Representati ve
Aust erman bel i eved that needed to be stated nore clearly.

Ms. Cook responded that on page 1, subsection (a) it states
on line 10 that the maxi mnum anount that may be appropriated
from the mneral sources was for a current fiscal year.
This entire amendment is structured with the notion that it
will be looking at a specific fiscal year and the noney
appropriated for that year is being limted. Consequently
in the current fiscal year, there is an appropriation for
FY 2011, but under the anendnent it would |ook at FY 2010
and the preceding four fiscal years in order to apply the
[imt anount. Representative Austerman further that on |ine
11, page 1, when referring to the current fiscal year, the
anendnent says imrediately "precedes" the current year. He
expressed further confusion. Ms. Cook replied that in order
to determine the anobunt that would be available for the
current year, the five fiscal years that imrediately
precede it nust be averaged. If the current year is FY
2011, then the five fiscal years imediately recede FY 2011
will include FY 2010.

10: 16: 43 AM

Representative Kelly agreed that something is |ost junping
from calendar year to fiscal vyear, but retain about six
nmont hs worth of |ooking forward. Ms. Cook declared that was
correct.

Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION to Anmendment 1.
There being NO further OBJECTI ON, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Co-Chair Stoltze talked to the fiscal note. He indicated
that the debate will continue on this bill.

10:18: 23 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/19/10 9:04 A M



Representative Austernan stated that this appears to be a
good working tool and part of the discussion over the
interim will tie back to the long term discussion on how
budgets will be funded in the future. He thanked
Representative Kelly for bringing this forward.

Representative Fairclough shared that during discussions on
the fiscal subcommttee level, there was a presentation
from Scott Goldsmth who enphasized that the state needs to
save every penny comng in right now as there is the
predicted |loss of oil and gas production over the years to
cone.

10: 20: 02 AM

Representati ve Doogan thanked the sponsor and staff for
their work on this bill to help level out spending in the
st at e.

Co-Chair Hawker MOWED to report CS HIR 8(FIN out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CS HIR 8(FIN was REPORTED out of Conmittee with a no
recommendations and with previously published fiscal note:
FN2 ( ADM

#

ADJ OURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:22 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/19/10 9:04 A M



